ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 2, 2009
3:18 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representati ve M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve John Coghi l
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 87

“An Act waiving paynent of premuns for major nedical insurance
under the defined benefit retirement plan for public enpl oyees
for disabled peace officers who have at |east 20 years of
credited service as peace officers.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 64

"An Act relating to gift certificates and gift cards, and to
uncl ai med property; and making a violation of certain gift card
prohi bitions an unlawful trade practice.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 87

SHORT TI TLE: MED BENEFI TS OF DI SABLED PEACE OFFI CERS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT

01/ 26/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 09 (H) L&C, STA, FIN

02/ 02/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 02/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 09 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 2, 2009



BILL: HB 64
SHORT TI TLE: G FT CARDS

SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO, GARDNER, GRUENBERG

01/ 20/ 09 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 09 (H) L&C, FIN

02/ 02/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 02/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 02/ 09 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 09/ 09 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CHARI SSE M LLETT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions
di scussi on of HB 87.

RYAN MAKI NSTER, St aff

to Representative Charisse MIllett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 87 on behalf of
sponsor, Representative Charisse Mllett.

JEFF BRI GGS

Al aska Professional Fire Fighters Association (APFFA)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions
di scussi on of HB 87.

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions
di scussi on of HB 87.

PAT SH ER, Director

D vision of Retirenent & Benefits

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions
di scussi on of HB 87.

during the

the prinme

during the

during the

during the

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 2- February 2, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions as a joint
prime sponsor during the discussion of HB 64.

REPRESENTATI VE BERTA GARDNER,

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions as a joint
pri me sponsor during the discussion of HB 64.

RACHEL LEW S, Uncl ai med Property Manager

Treasury Division

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 64.

MARY FAI RBANKS, WMarketing Director

D nond Center

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 64.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:18:16 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Committee neeting to order at 3:18 p.m Represent ati ves Neunan,
Coghill, Chenault, Buch, Holnes, and O son were present at the
call to order. Representative Lynn arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 87 - MED BENEFI TS OF DI SABLED PEACE OFFI CERS

3:18:55 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 87, "An Act waiving paynent of prem uns for major
medi cal insurance under the defined benefit retirement plan for
public enployees for disabled peace officers who have at |east
20 years of credited service as peace officers.”

3:19:26 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 3- February 2, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT, Al aska State Legislature, introduced her
staff, Ryan Makinster. She briefly explained HB 87. She
offered that if peace officers who are between their 20'" and 25'"
years of enploynent becone disabled, they will not receive any
maj or nedical coverage until they reach the age of 60. She
offered her belief that this gap was an unintended consequence
of legislation that passed the legislature in 1986 that created
Tier Il and Tier 11l state enployees. She said she anticipates
that HB 87 will be held over to allow tine to provide additional
actuarial information.

3:20: 36 PM

RYAN MAKI NSTER, Staff to Representative MIllett, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained on behalf of the prime sponsor, that HB
87 seeks to make a change for a gap in the Public Enployees
Retirement System (PERS) disabled coverage. He explained that
public safety enployees are eligible to retire after 20 years of
service, instead of the 25 years of service required for other
state enpl oyees. Thus, the period of tine from 20 to 25 years

causes a problem for the public safety enployees. He related
that wunder the current statute, a person is eligible for
di sabl ed coverage for full major nedical benefits if they are
disabled while he/she is a nenber. Retired public safety

enpl oyees are not technically mnenbers of the plan during that
five-year gap period, he stated. He conmmented that the bill
drafter also restructured the proposed statute sonmewhat, but
t hose changes were only technical in nature.

3:22:29 PM

MR. MAKINSTER, in response to Chair O son, explained that the
fiscal note for fiscal year (FY) 2010, should Ilist $12.8 to
reflect thousands instead of mllions. Addi tionally, one-tine
programming costs wll be incurred to add the necessary
requirenments of HB 87 to the Dyvision of Retirenment and
Benefits’ conputer system

3:23:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL asked whether it would cause a
constitutional i ssue if t he | egi slature i ncreased t he
requi renents for public safety enployees retirenent age from 20
to 25 years of service.

REPRESENTATIVE M LLETT offered her belief that the benefits
could not be dimnished. She explained HB 87 would increase the

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 4- February 2, 2009



unfunded liability by $567,000, by lowering the years of service
eligibility for occupational disability nedical coverage from 25

to 20 years. She elaborated that paynent anount would be
anortized over 25 years. The fiscal note also reflects that
nore enployees wll be added into this category over tine.

Thus, for FY 11, the increase in annual enployer contribution
woul d be $67 thousand.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL inquired as to whether the gap is for al
medi cal insurance or if an enployee who becones a disabled
person in the gap situation would have any health insurance at
all.

MR. MAKI NSTER answered that the disabled person would have nmjor
nmedi cal coverage, but would be responsible for the prem uns,
whi ch otherwi se are paid for by the plan.

MR. MAKINSTER, in response to Representative Coghill, answered
t hat he was not sure of the prem um anounts.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said it seenmed as though the effect of
the changes will be to transfer sone of the risk. He recalled
several discussions years ago that the trade-off for a 20-year
retirement, whose purpose was to retain a young and vibrant
wor kforce, was that its nenbers would not be eligible for
benefits wuntil year 25. He said he could not recall if the
disability factor was part of the discussion. He inquired as to
whet her the state would pick up the risk of paying the prem um
or if it is passed on to the enpl oyee.

MR. MAKI NSTER offered that he is researching the original intent
of the early retirenent plan for public safety enployees to
determine if provisions for disability were inadvertently
omtted.

3:27:30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked for the reason that the gap in

prem um coverage for disability is just now surfacing as an
issue if the statute changed in 1986

MR. MAKI NSTER answered that until recently, no enpl oyee has been
af f ect ed. He offered that some enpl oyees have recently entered
the 20 to 25 year w ndow. He recalled that a public safety
enpl oyee Fairbanks was recently affected.

3:28:30 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- February 2, 2009



MR. MAKINSTER, in further response to Representative Neunan,
explained that the perceived gap referred to the technical
definition of “disabled nmenber,” since eligibility requires that
the person nust be part of the retirenment system However, the
way the statute has been interpreted, in order to be a nenber a
person must be part of the defined benefit nenbership plan.
However, if an enployee opted out of the plan at 20 years,
he/she is not considered eligible. In further response to
Representati ve Neuman, M. Makinster reiterated that the sponsor
is seeking clarification on the original intent of the coverage
for those enployees who are eligible for retirement after 20
years of service.

3:30:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL referred to the fiscal note that nentions
the total population affected by HB 87 equals 2,275 Tier Il and
Tier 11l peace officer and firefighter nenbers. He inquired as
to what the normal denographic for injuries is by age group and
stratification.

MR. MAKI NSTER offered that was not certain but offered that the
DOA would be testifying and could answer questions about the
actuari al amounts.

3:33:26 PM

CHAIR OLSON, in response to Representative Chenault, offered to
have soneone from the consultant group, Buck Consultants of
Denver, Col orado, participate at the next hearing to explain the
cost estimates for allowing paid nedical benefits for peace
officer and firefighter nenbers with 20 years of service instead
of 25 years of service.

3:33:49 PM

JEFF BRIGGS, Alaska Professional Fire Fighters Association
(APFFA), explained that his association, the Professional Fire
Fighters Association (APFFA) first |earned about the nedical
coverage gap last winter. He related that the issue is referred
to by the PFFA as the *“PERS gap”. He related that Anchorage
nmenbers belong to a nmunicipal retirement system so the only
firefighter in his departnment that is currently affected by the
PERS gap is sonmeone who transferred in from another fire
depart nment. He surmsed that nost of their organization' s
menbers are in PERS, with 14 years enploynent tenure. Thus, his

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 6- February 2, 2009



departnment’s enpl oyees are still 6 or 7 years away from the PERS
gap. However, he offered his understanding that quite a few
firefighter nenbers in Fairbanks and a few nenbers in Juneau are
affected by the PERS gap. One of the concerns the APFFA has is
that an enployee who is injured with 10 years plus a day’s

service will receive nore benefits than sonmeone with 25 years
enpl oynent . Thus, once an enployee is injured at the 20-year
service mark, he/she is penalized. He recalled that the

Anchorage Fire Departnent suffered a |arge exodus of retirees

who were then rehired as contractors to train younger
firefighters. In his experience, the injury rate for senior
firefighters has not been an issue since the senior firefighters
have substantial training and experience, and are less likely to
be injured on the job, he opined.

MR. BRIGGS related his understanding that the reason for the 20-
year retirenment was to entice peace officers and firefighter
nmenbers to stay on the job longer to seek an early retirenent.
He offered his belief that his departnent has not been harnmed by
the PERS gap to date. However, as tinme passes nore firefighters

could be affected, he noted. He related that firefighters are
in the business of taking risks, and understand that any given
day could result in their injury or death. He related his own

experience, noting that a few weeks ago he had to dive through a
wi ndow into a burning house with limted visibility in order to
perform a rescue. He opined that firefighters continually weigh
risks versus benefits. He concluded by stating that
firefighters should not have to worry about whether they have
nmedi cal coverage in the event that they are injured while on the
job attenpting to rescue or save soneone.

3:37:46 PM

KEVI N BROOKS, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnment of Administration (DOA), explained that the DOA is
aware of the wunfunded status of Public Enployees Retirenent
System (PERS) and Teacher Retirenment System (TRS). He rel ated
that HB 87 would add over $500,000 to the unfunded status.
Therefore, the DOA is concerned since this bill would add to the
unfunded st at us. He explained that the DOA is currently
investigating the history of the PERS gap. He stated that based
on prior testinony, the issue arose in 1986, with the passage of

enabling legislation for Tier Il inplenmentation. He offered
that a few years ago the DOA undertook an exhaustive review of
all pension plans when Senate Bill 141 passed the legislature

The Departnent of Law is also assisting the DOA in researching
the legislative history on this “gap” issue, he advised.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 2, 2009



3:39:11 PM

MR. BROOKS, in response to Chair O son, stated that the DOA has
asked the actuaries some questions about the unfunded status.
Additionally, the DOA is also considering inpacts that other
| egislation may have that could nake changes to the tiers or
defined benefit plans. He said he hopes to receive an analysis
in a few weeks from the actuaries. He offered to provide
cormentary and witten coments at that tine. He wel coned to
present any additional questions by the commttee to the
actuaries. However, he highlighted that the DOA is charged fees
for any services the actuaries provide. Thus, he said that the
DOA careful ly pr epar es conci se gquestions for their
consi derati on. In further response to Chair O son, M. Brooks
answered that the DOA is neutral on HB 87 at this tine.
However, once additional information is acquired, he said he
t hought that the DOA s position would probably broaden.

3:41:18 PM

MR. BROCKS, in response to Representative Neuman, answered that
the bill as witten is specifically defined. He said he did not
perceive that HB 87, in and of itself would open dial ogue on
defined benefits and defined contributions.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL stated his interest in reviewng new
figures on the fiscal note, since it will nake a big difference
whet her the projected costs are $567,000 or $10 billion. He
surm sed that the commttee will need to make a policy decision
on the cost to keep work force enployed. He inquired as to
whet her menbers still contribute to the retirement system if
they are enployed during the 20 - 25 year time period.
Additionally, he inquired as to whether nenbers make co-paynents
on their nedical clains.

3:43: 44 PM

PAT SHI ER Di rector, Di vision of Retirement & Benefits,
Departnment of Admnistration (DOA), answered vyes, if public
safety enployees remai n enpl oyed, both the enployer and enpl oyee
make contributions into the enployee’s retirenment system In
further response to Representative Coghill, M. Shier noted that
enpl oyees can pay the anmount of the prem um He clarified that
the cost is not really a premum to health plan, but would be
paid from the retirenent health trust unless the enployee was
di sabl ed. In that instance, the disabled enployee would incur

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 8- February 2, 2009



the cost of the prem uns, he related. He provided the current
anount of the premium for an enployee who was disabled between
the 20 - 25 years of service as $590 per nonth. The anount of
the prem um would vary, he noted. Thus, the coverage for the
retiree and a child would be $833; for a retiree and spouse
woul d be $1179; and for the retiree and famly would be $1423
per nonth. He offered that a disabled retiree m ght seek to get
coverage elsewhere if they could, but would need to pay the
premum costs if he/she wanted to stay in the current state
heal t h pl an.

3:46: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL reiterated his belief that the commttee
will need to nake a policy decision on the benefits and costs
necessary to keep the public safety work force enpl oyed.

MR. BROOKS, in response to a prior question by Representative
Chenault, clarified that $567,000 estimate is an estimte of the
change in the present value of the future benefits. Ther ef or e,
payi ng the cost over tinme could result in a greater cash stream

3:47:51 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 87. He announced t hat
HB 87 woul d be hel d over.

HB 64- 3 FT CARDS

3:48: 26 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
to take up HOUSE BILL NO 64, "An Act relating to gift
certificates and gift cards, and to wunclainmed property; and
maki ng a violation of certain gift card prohibitions an unl awf ul
trade practice.”

3:49: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO explained HB 64 by describing a
scenario in which a grandfather purchases a gift card in the
amount of $100 for his granddaughter. However, he related the
granddaughter did not use the card for one year. Thus, due to
an activation fee, a nonthly fee, and a delay of one year by the
granddaughter in wusing the card, the value of the card is

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 9- February 2, 2009



reduced to $35. He further related that his scenario describes
t he essence of the problem

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO sunmari zed that the purpose of HB 64 is to
restrict vendors from charging activation and nonthly charges on
gift cards. Instead, the gift cards will retain their origina
val ue forever. Further, he stated the seller nust notify the
state’s Departnent of Revenue (DOR), Treasury Division's
Uncl ai med Property program of any unclained property at the end
of three years. Thus, in instances of gift cards, the vendor
must informthe DOR that the recipient has not yet used the gift
card and nust renmt the $100 to the DOR The DOR will then

attenpt to locate the gift card owner. He related that the
store already had use of the purchaser’s noney for three years,
but then the SOA should receive the noney. In instances in

which the gift card recipient |ater discovers the card and uses
it, the store can subsequently contact unclainmed property to get
rei mbur sed

3:51:43 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated his intention to cosponsor the bill.

REPRESENTATIVE COGH LL related that certificates are not
ment i oned.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that in instances in which a gift
card is a pronotional itemthat it can have an expiration date.
He related that certificates are usually an offer of two nights

at a hotel for a discount. He explained those itens are
considered a gift and are not included in the bill. He
coomented that he recently saw advertising that read, “No
activation fees, no mninmm anount, no kidding.” He surm sed

that even the gift card conpanies are now aware that other gift
card conpanies are finding ways to raise revenue rather than to
supply a service for people who don’'t know what to buy for
sonmeone so they give their famly and friends gift cards.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN recalled other states’ efforts the past
five years to restrict fees for gift cards. He inquired as to
whet her the restrictions are simlar to provisions in HB 64.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered that national chain stores such as
Costco Whol esale Corporation (Costco) and Wal-Mart Stores, Inc

are covered under federal |[|aw He offered that he reviewed
| egislation other states have passed, incorporating provisions
that will best address issues in Al aska.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -10- February 2, 2009



3:55:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that sone states have so many
exceptions that nost businesses can still charge activation, and
monthly fees, and cards expire after a year. He related that
his intention is not to create burdens for recordkeeping. Most
cards have barcodes for tracking purposes, he stated.

3:56: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked for clarification on HB 64 wth
respect to the expiration date. She rel ated her understanding
under proposed AS 45.45.940(a)(1l), that a gift card would retain
its full-face value in perpetuity. Thus, expiration dates are
not allowed on gift cards, she surm sed. She related her

further understanding that under proposed AS 34.45.240 (a), that
if the gift card is not claimed within three years that it is
presumed to be abandoned. She asked for an explanation of what
happens after three years when a gift card is considered
abandoned.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO explained that if Representative Holnes
di scovers a $100 gift card 5 years after its issuance, she could
go to the store and ask to redeem it. He said he thought the
store owner would probably honor the gift card. If so, the
store owner would contact the state Departnent of Revenue (DOR),
Treasury Division, Unclaimed Property office to mtch the
recipient’s nane with the funds the store remtted three years
earlier when the store determned the gift card was abandoned.
He pointed out that current law requires stores to remt funds
on gift cards that have not been redeenmed within a 3-year
peri od.

3:58:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked what happens if the store goes out
of busi ness.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO rel ated a scenario in which a conpany where
he had purchased a lifetine service went out of business.

3:59: 23 PM
REPRESENTATI VE  BERTA  GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature,

explained that the provision in HB 64 that unclainmed property
reverts to the state is existing law. She clarified that when a

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 2, 2009



nmerchant sells gift card and it 1is wunused and considered
abandoned, that the nmerchant is supposed to remt the value of
the gift card to the DOR

3:59: 56 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HOLMES referred to page 3, to proposed
AS 45.45.940 (c)(1), to the exceptions for awards, loyalty, or
pronoti onal prograns. She inquired as to what happens if sone
noney exchanges hands. She related an exanple such that a
person has al nost enough award points and pays sonething in cash
to obtain the reward.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered that he had a feeling that type of
transaction would be considered an award, such as a mleage
pl an.

4:01:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked whether HB 64 wuld create an
opportunity for the state to reclaim funds from nerchants who
did not remt unused gift card funds to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER recalled she once perforned bookkeeping
services for a small store. She related that the store tracked
gift cards and certificates sold and the value of any gift
certificates redeened. She stated it was not a problem for that
business to identify at any tinme the total amount of gift cards
that were used and unused. She said she thought it was a
reasonabl e accounting practice for other stores to have that
ability.

4:02:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN expressed concern about the tinme and
effort it mght take for businesses to conply. He offered his
belief that gift cards probably contain |anguage that infornms
t hem of the provisions. He stated that soneone has to pay the
admnistrative costs for gift cards. He said he probably has
sonme gift cards whose val ue has dim nished and that the unstated
“buyer beware” should apply.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answer ed t hat t wo t hi ngs are
consi derati ons. First, he noted that the cost to retailers to
sell gift cards is mnimal, he surmsed, since nbost are stores
use conputers to track inventory. Secondly, he pointed out the
value to stores for wunused gift cards. He explained that

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 2, 2009



retailers can use the noney spent on gift cards that are not
redeened. He surmsed that sonme stores nmay sell |large
quantities of gift cards and use that noney to run their
busi ness instead of having to borrow the noney. He related that
the value of wunused gift cards represents interest free noney
for nmerchants, which has a val ue.

4:05:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that “in perpetuity” still bothers
hi m He suggested that at some point gift cards should expire.
Additionally, it seemed to him that one aspect is that unspent
portion of gift cards is one way in which businesses profit.
Thus, it could be argued that businesses already profit fromthe
gi ft cards.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered an earlier question, stating that
current law requires businesses to remt the value of unused
gift cards after three years. He advised that if a business
does not conply and undergoes an audit, that the business is
I'iable.

4:06: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked how other states handle expiration
dates and why it is inportant to inpose since the longer a
person keeps a card, the fewer goods the person could buy.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered that a three year expiration date
is in the md-range for expiration dates. However, a retailer
could tell a consunmer that he/she no longer has the card since
the merchant renmitted its value to the state or he/she can honor
the card and get reinbursed. He offered that an alternative
approach would be for retailers to reissue expired cards or to
contact the state to reclaim the original card after three
years. He surmsed that after the three year |apse, that
probably not very nmany people would nake a claim

4:08:31 PM

RACHEL LEWS, Unclainmed Property WMnager, Treasury Division,
Depart ment of Revenue (DOR) explained that during her 14 years
as the unclaimed property rmanager, that gift cards and
certificates have not had nuch attention. She offered her
understanding that HB 64 would clarify current statutes that are
somewhat uncl ear.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -13- February 2, 2009



M5. LEWS, in response to Representative Coghill, answered that
paper certificates are included as wunclained property. She
explained that the fair trades practices attenpts to define it
as goods and services of value. She surmsed that a card would
not have to be plastic.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL recalled purchasing a 12-nmonth supply of
mani cures and pedi cures. However, the retailer allowed
redenption after its expiration date. He asked for
clarification for the process of unclainmed property.

M5. LEWS responded that she receives nore conplaints about
expired spa treatnments since nmany of them can cost $500 and
often the client doesn’'t realize the certificate has expired
until they want to use it. She related that the recipient wll
send a copy of the certificate, that she sends a letter to the
business owner that after 3 vyears the certificate nust be
remtted as unclaimed property unless the owner decides to honor
it. M. Lews offered that nost of the tine, the business owner
will decide to renove the expiration date and honor the spa
treat ment. She commented that businesses |learn how the law is
applied. Thus, she educates businesses nost of the tinme instead
of enforcing the |aw, she stat ed.

4:12: 02 PM

M5. LEWS, in response to Representative Hol mes, opined that the
process of having gift cards turned over to the state is

ef ficient. She related that the use of unclainmed property is
fairly well known at the national |evel, but she surm sed that
the awareness |evel about them is low in-state. She rel ated

that she has provided semnars to certified public accountants
(CPA) firms, to advise them that any un-cashed payroll checks or
vendor paynents that have not been redeened nust be reported as
uncl ai med property, as well as any gift cards or certificates
t hat have not been redeened.

4:13: 30 PM

M5. LEWS, in further response to Representative Holnes,
answered that retailers can be charged penalties and interest.
However, she highlighted that her enphasis is nore on education
i nstead of enforcenent.

4:13:52 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 2, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES referred to a legislative research report
in commttee nmenber’s packets. She offered her belief that sone
states are noving away fromthis type of procedure.

M5. LEWS responded that other states have changed their [|aws
wWth respect to gift card during the past three years She
surm sed that currently about 35 bills have been introduced in
various states to renmove fees and expiration dates on gift

cards. She recalled discussions with her counterparts during
conferences who advise that some | obbying groups have
successfully Ilobbied for expiration dates, which adversely
i npacts consumers. However, two states, Washington and

II'linois, pronote prograns that offer decals for retailers to
use that inform consuners that their gift certificates never
expire. She offered that those types of progranms give consuners
confidence to mmke purchases. She explained the process for
uncl ai mved property such that the state receives unclained
property every day, that it is logged either by name, check
certificate, bond, or stock nunmber or issuance. Thus, the
system is el aborate. Ms. Lewis highlighted that this year the
uncl ainmed program received $16,000 worth of unused and
unredeened gift cards for approximately 400 individuals. She
noted that of those, about half were identified by name with the
i ndi vidual value of their unclainmed property ranging from $156
down to just a few dollars. She related that sone gift cards
are reported by large retailers that typically provide mai
order services. She commented that their system has been in
place for over 22 years to assist in returning funds to
CONSUNers. In further response to Representative Hol nmes, M.
Lew s answered that the physical |ocation of where the gift card
was purchased determ nes which state | aw applies.

4:18:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN recal l ed that he attended a fundraiser for
an organization and purchased a certificate for taxiderm st
nmount that expired in one year. He inquired as to how this bil
woul d affect reporting for incone taxes.

M5. LEWS explained that itens gift certificates that are
donated to an organi zation do not fall under unclained property,
since the recipient mkes the donation to the charity and

obtains the certificate as a gift for incone tax purposes. I n
further response to Representative Neuman, M. Lew s reviewed
the process for unclainmed property. She related that in

instances in which a business, such as a taxiderm st, sells a
certificate that expires in a year, and the custoner does not

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 15- February 2, 2009



redeem the certificate, that the taxiderm st would remit to the
state the value of the certificate after three years | apses.
She explained that after three years, the certificate holder
could contact her office and submt a claimand if the itemis
listed, a check would be remtted. If not, she stated that the
busi ness owner would be contacted, advised that the certificate
needs to be remtted to the state.

4:21:30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if it is legal to list an expiration
date on gift card or gift certificate since the itens are
reportabl e under uncl ai med property.

M5. LEWS answered that placing an expiration date on a gift
card or certificate is not illegal but it is m sleading.

4:22:53 PM

M5. LEWS explained that the federal AS 34.45 Uniform Uncl ai ned
Property Act, under AS 34.45, prohibits businesses from charging
service fees on dormant accounts, thereby gradually dim nishing
gift cards out of existence. She related that current |aw for
gift certificates is vague, identifying that they are reportable
as uncl ai med property after three years.

M5. LEWS, in response to Representative Neuman, offered that
uncl ai med property provisions would be considered nore as fair
trade and consuner protection | aws.

4:24: 26 PM

CHAIR COLSON inquired as to whether M. Lews could provide
statistics with respect to what percentage of total unclained
property is fromgift cards.

M5. LEWS answered that of the currently, $4 mllion to $4.5
mllion in unclainmed property, that approximtely $17,000 has
been reported as unclainmed property. She surm sed the figures
are low since a lot of businesses are not aware of the need to
report.

4:25:15 PM
M5. LEWS, in response to Chair O son, answered that she could

get a rough idea by dividing the $17,000 by the 443 accounts
associated with the unclainmed property. Thus, the average claim

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 16- February 2, 2009



woul d equal about $35. However, sone clainms are for residua
amounts, while others are for the full anpunt of $500, she said.
In further response to Chair A son, Ms. Lewis responded that it
is not costly to process clainms or burdensone for retailers due
to electronic reporting. She related that sone businesses balk
at reporting gift certificates when the identity of the person
is not known.

4:26:46 PM

M5. LEWS, in response to Representative Coghill, explained that
nost of the unclained property reported for gift cards was a
m nimum of at |east $25. She offered that the unclained

property provisions provides an exception such that in instances
in which the value of all the unclainmed property accounts is
under $100, and the sum of all the dimnutive accounts are |ess
than $750, then a business can hold the property until the

threshold is net. She offered that the purpose of the unclai nmed
property reporting is not to burden businesses to report
residual amounts remaining on gift cards. I nstead, the purpose

is to ensure that a safeguard exists to ensure that property the
busi nesses are holding, that doesn't belong to them is returned
to the recipient, and all ow busi nesses to bal ance their books.

4:28:56 PM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expressed concern for snaller conpanies

He surmsed that the larger the conpany, the nore likely it
woul d track the gift cards. He recalled that Safeway has a rack

of gift cards. He commented that the dimnishing anounts on
cards that mght produce profit for the conpany would al so have
to be reported. He asked for clarification on the accumul ated
t hr eshol d.

M5. LEWS agreed he is correct on the necessity of reporting the
gi ft cards.

4:29:51 PM

M5. LEWS, in response to Chair dson, noted there is not a
statute of I|imtations that applies. She related that sone
conpanies go out of business and the agency files bankruptcy
clainms on unsecured clains. She comented, “You would be
surprised at how many dollars that can be.”

M5. LEWS, in response to Representative Holnes, agreed that
gift certificates do not expire.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 2, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked if the public is educated on uncl ai ned
gift cards, whether the Departnment of Revenue will be inundated
wi th cl ains.

M5. LEWS answered that she hopes that elevating the gift card
issue will affect consuners in positive ways and el evates their
awar eness that their noney spent on gift cards is not |ost.

4:33:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH commented on the mnimal fiscal note that it
seened small in the event that a |lot of Al askan consuners were
to make cl ai ns.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT appl auded the concept of potentially
passing a bill that helped consuners, advising them of their
rights so they could interact with businesses directly, and not
have to have the state intervene on their behalf.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in response to Representative Neunan,
answered that grocery stores offer discounts on gasoline for
custoners who buy their groceries. He opined that the grocery
store is allowed to place an expiration on its own discounts as
the discount is not considered a gift card or certificate.

CHAI R OLSON expressed concern that it mght cost the DOR nore
noney to process the claimfor unclaimed property than the claim
is worth.

M5. LEWS answered that people often have nore than one piece of
uncl ai med property.

4. 36: 58 PM

MARY FAlI RBANKS, Marketing Director, D nond Center, stated that
she had sonme questions. She inquired as to whether exanples
could be given for the exceptions under proposed AS 45.45.940
(c)(3), and (4), t hat relate to banks and financial

institutions.

M5. LEWS answered that the DOR does not have any jurisdiction
over financial institutions.

4:39:27 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 18- February 2, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES offered an explanation that it would seem
that proposed AS 45.45.940 (c)(4), would apply to entities like
the Dinond Center. She offered that if the Dinond Center issued
a card that could be used in a multiple nunber of stores in the
D nond Center, that this provision would apply.

4:40: 05 PM

CHAI R OLSON suggested Ms. Fairbanks should send a letter or e-
mail to the prime sponsor for clarification on issues she nmay
have on HB 64.

4:40: 20 PM

M5. FAI RBANKS then testified that she agreed with the gentl enman
who previously stated, “Buyer beware.” She opined that if the
information s provided on the gift card listing the
restrictions and expiration date, and the person is willing to
buy the gift card, then why is it necessary to protect the
consuner.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered that often the statenents are in
tiny print and the card is at the cash register. He reiterated
his scenario in which a grandfather m ght want to buy a gift for
hi s granddaughter, but he isn’t sure what she would l|ike. Thus,
his expectation is that he is purchasing a $100 gift
certificate, not a card that will dimnish in value or wll
expire

M5. FAI RBANKS rel ated she thought the gift card disclainers were
simlar to instances in which a store posts a sign stating it
will only honor store credits on any returned nerchandi se. She

opined that consuners nust bear the responsibility in that
i nstance.

4:41:55 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, announced that he would hold HB 64 over.

4:42:11 PM
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:42 p. m

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -19- February 2, 2009



